
SCRUTINY : SOCIAL 
SERVICES MEETING
3.00 pm TUESDAY, 17TH MAY, 2016

COUNCIL CHAMBER

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded. 
 

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet 
as it will only be used for training purposes by the

Democratic Services Department.

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering 
the Chamber and using the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public 

are consenting to being filmed.

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 
(01685) 725203 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda 
can be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

A G E N D A

1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations) 
Members of this Committee are reminded of their 
personal responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s 
Constitution and the Members Code of Conduct.   
In addition, Members must declare any prohibited 
party whip which the Member has been given in 
relation to the meeting as per the Local 
Government (Wales) Measure 2011.  

Note:

a. Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest; and 

b. Where Members withdraw from a meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave. 

3. Social Services response to CSSIW report 
See attached report (Pages 1 - 6)

4. Annual report Social Services Complaints, 
Representations and Compliments 
See attached report (Pages 7 - 26)

5. Preparation of Work Programme for 2016/17 
See attached report. (Pages 27 - 42)

6. Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 
To receive updates as appropriate. 

7. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions 
To receive any referrals from the other Scrutiny 
Committees and Audit Committee; an update from 
the Chair on their attendance at the Service 
Performance Challenge Meetings and to consider 
any follow up actions from the previous 
Meeting(s).

8. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting 
To receive an update from the Chair.



9. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair 

COMPOSITION: Councillor W R Smith (Chair)

Councillors: D Davies, R Braithwaite, A Jones, T Lewis, 
B E Mansbridge and J McCarthy

Co-optee(s): B Lewis

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725203

Os byddai’n well gennych gopi o’r agenda hwn mewn iaith arall, cysylltwch a 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01685 725203

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk
mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Social Services response to CSSIW report 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 At the 1st December 2015 scrutiny committee meeting, the Care and Social Services 
Inspectorate for Wales (CSSIW) reported to scrutiny committee on their Annual 
Review and Performance Evaluation report of Merthyr Tydfil Social Services for 
2014-15. An action plan was to be prepared to address the recommendations in the 
report. This will be the second update of progress against actions for improvement 
since that date.

.
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 Scrutiny committee consider the report and raise questions and challenges that will 
improve practice and outcomes.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 In its Annual Review and Performance Evaluation report of Merthyr Tydfil Social 
Services for 2014-15 the CSSIW identified some areas for progress. This report 
provides an update as a basis for scrutiny committee members to raise queries and 
challenge. 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE 

4.1 The table below sets out progress against the relevant areas that were identified for 
improvement:

Date Written May 2016
Report Author Annabel Lloyd
Service Area Children’s Services
Committee Date 17  May 2016

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Area for 
improvement 

Progress Update

Performance 
14/15 – Initial 
Assessments

Performance 
as at quarter 
3 end 15/16 
– Initial 
Assessments 

Performance 
as at year 
end 31.3.16

Notes1. Timely 
completion of 
initial 
assessments

57.2%  73.9% 73.5%  Performance 2014-5 
was affected by high 
levels of vacancy and 
sickness absence 
during that year. This 
has since changed 
and there has been 
increased support 
and monitoring with a 
good result.  During 
2016-7 performance 
measures are 
changing in 
compliance with the 
requirements of 
Social Services and 
Wellbeing Wales Act 
(SSWB) and the 
relevant measure will 
be: the percentage of 
assessments 
completed within 42 
working days from 
the point of referral. 

Performance 
14/15 – stat. 
visits to 
looked after 
children

Performance 
as at quarter 
3 end 15/16 - 
stat. visits to 
looked after 
children

Performance 
as at year 
end 31.3.16

 Notes 2. Frequency 
of statutory 
visits to 
looked after 
children

78.8%   79.9 % 82.4 % This is a good result 
which puts us close 
to the welsh average 
of 87%. This will not 
be a measure under 
the new SSWB 
performance 
reporting but we will 
continue to report it 
locally given the 
implications for 
looked after young 
people.

Page 2



3. Support for 
young carers

 During 2014/15 79 young 
carers were engaged with the 
Service. There were 15 new 
referrals, with 45 
assessments/reviews 
conducted. At the end of that 
financial year there were 40 
young carers on the waiting 
list. 

 During 2015/16 135 young carers 
were engaged with the Barnardos 
Young Carers Service. There were 
142 new referrals, 31 new young 
cares assessments completed and 
138 three month reviews 
conducted. At the end of that 
financial year there was no waiting 
list. The primary objective for 
2015/16 was to develop the Service 
from standalone provision to a 
more holistic service within the 
context of whole family support in 
order to reduce the waiting list of 40 
young carers. This transition has 
been achieved ensuring better 
through put within the service to 
support more young carers. MIA 
Keyworkers are now fully 
competent in completing young 
carers’ assessments and sourcing 
mainstream activities for young 
carers to access.  This will allow 
more young carers to be assessed 
moving forward.  Specialist Young 
Carers project workers are now 
fully part of the TAF process and 
play an active role within TAF 
meetings.  Referrals are now being 
identified and directed through the 
MIA panel and allocated to 
Barnardo’s.   At the time of writing 
there are 43 young carers being 
supported by MIA/ Young carers. 
These 43 would have had a MIA 
CAF Assessment completed as 
well as a Young Carers 
Assessment.

4. Change in 
planning 
policy for child 
minders

Further to the CSSIW report which raised issues in respect of the 
current planning policy in relation to childminders several meetings 
have been held between Social Services and Planning managers. A 
report was presented to Council on the 24th February 2016 to 
change the current approach to planning and childminding. Council 
resolved that:
 
b) If a childminder proposes to look after more than six children they 
are required to complete and submit the questionnaire and covering 
letter at Annex B and C of the Welsh Government Policy Clarification 
Letter CL-01-16 – Planning and Childcare in Wales.  Each case will 
then be judged on its merits by the Planning Department to 
determine whether it would result in a material change of use and 
therefore require planning permission.

Page 3



 
And:
 
(c) When a childminder or potential childminder submits the 
questionnaire to ascertain whether planning permission is required 
there is no charge for this service (if Planning Permission is required 
the application fee is £380).  Each case will be determined on its 
merits.

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 

5.1 There has been progress in the areas for improvement with a need to see further 
improvement in future years and continues monitoring of performance and the 
quality of service delivery.

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 

6.1 Merthyr Tydfil Children’s services plan is to be demonstrating performance that is 
in the top quartile for Wales and in many areas we are achieving this. 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 

7.1 We will continue to improve performance and provide a further report to   scrutiny 
committee following year end performance evaluation.

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO CORPORATE PRIORITIES

8.1 The content of this report has strategic congruence with the Children’s Service 
Strategy in the following ways:

 Desired Outcome 6: All young people we work with have: timely assessment 
and outcome focussed care and support plans

 Desires Outcome 4: Commissioned services meet need and are high 
performing 

 Aim 2: Improve Performance 

 Aim 5:  Promote Early Intervention and Prevention

 Cwm Taf Looked After Child Prevention Strategy Outcome 3. The wellbeing 
and opportunities of looked after young people is improved

LISA CURTIS-JONES
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES) 

COUNCILLOR LINDA MATTHEWS 
CABINET MEMBER FOR SOCIAL 

SERVICES 

Page 4



BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

CSSIW Annual Review 
and Performance 

Evaluation report of 
Merthyr Tydfil Social 
Services for 2014-15

December 2015 Unit 5 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

No

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

ANNUAL REPORT SOCIAL SERVICES COMPLAINTS, 
REPRESENTATIONS AND COMPLIMENTS 2014/2015

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 Local Authorities are required by the Social Services Complaints Procedure (Wales) 
Regulations 2014 and the Representations Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 to 
produce an Annual Report about the operation of their Social Services Complaints, 
Representations and Compliments policy and procedures.

1.2 This report highlights the key points contained in the annual Social Services 
Complaints, Representations and Compliments report. 

1.3 The Annual Report on Social Services Complaints, Representations and 
Compliments for 2014/2015 is attached as Appendix 1.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 Scrutiny committee consider the report and raise questions and challenges that will 
improve practice and outcomes for our customers.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 Social Services provide support to the most vulnerable people in our community, 
often in very difficult situations, and routinely deliver effective services that make a 
real difference in people’s lives. Sometimes, however for a variety of reasons, people 
will make a complaint about the service they have received.

Date Written 25th April 2016
Report Author Jonathan Strong
Service Area Social Services
Committee Date 17th May 2016

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



3.2 Local Authorities are required by the Social Services Complaints Procedure (Wales) 
Regulations 2014 and the Representations Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 to 
produce an Annual Report about the operation of their Social Services Complaints, 
Representations and Compliments policy and procedures.

3.3 The annual Social Services Complaints, Representations and Compliments Report 
for 2014/2015 sets out the Departments performance in relation to how it has dealt 
with the complaints, representations and compliments it has received.

3.4 The report details the number of complaints that were received and dealt with at all 
the available stages of the policy across both children’s and adults services.

3.5 New guidelines for complaints, representations and compliments by Local Authority 
Social Services came into force in August 2014. The main difference between the 
new procedures and the new guidance is the removal of the Stage 3 Independent 
Panel Hearing. The regulations introduced a new two stage process and brought the 
Social Services procedures in line with the Corporate “Model Concerns and 
Complaints Policy and Guidance”.

3.6 The regulations aim to provide streamline complaints arrangements across the 
public sector and focus on an initial local resolution where the expectation is that the 
significant majority of complaints would be resolved.

4.0 WHERE WE WERE 

4.1 The annual report for 2013/2014 showed that in total we received 95 complaints of 
which 83% were resolved at the informal stage.

4.2 The table below details the complaints that were received in 2013/2014 across 
Children’s and Adult services across all stages of the complaints process.

Service Area Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Adult Services 30 4 1 35

Children’s Services 49 8 3 60

Total 79 12 4 95

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 

5.1 The annual report for 2014/2015 showed that in total we received 88 complaints of 
which 86% were resolved at the informal stage.

5.2 The table below details the complaints that were received in 2014/2015 across 
Children’s and Adult services across all stages of the complaints process.

Page 8



Service Area Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Adult Services 29 7 0 36

Children’s Services 47 11 1 52

Total 76 11 1 88

5.3 It is difficult to draw straight comparisons between the years 2013/2014 and 
2014/2015 as the new guidelines for complaints, representations and compliments 
by Local Authority Social Services came into force in August 2014 which removed 
the Stage 3 Independent Panel Hearing element of the complaints process.

5.4 For comparison purposes the number of complaints received over the last three 
years was as follows.

Service Area 2014/2015 2013/2014 2012/2013

Adult Services 36 35 29

Children’s Services 52 60 33

Total 88 95 62

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 

6.1 For a variety of reasons, people will make a complaint about the service they have 
received. It is important that anyone who makes a complaint about our services has 
a right to be listened to properly with their concerns resolved quickly and effectively.  
In addition, it is important that Local Authorities learn from these complaints and 
where necessary use them to identify where services should be changed and 
improved.

6.2 Every effort is made to resolve matters at a local level with the emphasis on 
achieving successful resolution of complaints.  At stage one the Local Authority 
usually offers to discuss (either face-to-face or by telephone) the matter with the 
complainant within ten working days to attempt to resolve matters. This approach 
allows for quick and successful resolution of most complaints.

6.3 Complaints received that are progressed to Stage 2 are normally more complex in 
nature and often contain several components of dissatisfaction that need to be 
independently investigated.

6.4 Our emphasis at all stages is focused on achieving satisfactory resolution of matters 
rather than upholding or not upholding complaints.  

6.5 All complaints are unique in their own right and often contain several elements of 
dissatisfaction to be addressed. This is particularly relevant at the formal stage, 

Page 9



hence the reason why the majority of stage two complaints are part upheld – some 
components being endorsed, while others not vindicated. 

6.6 Communication issues including failure to respond within appropriate timescales to 
messages and failure to update customers on decision continued to be a theme 
through this reporting period.

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 

7.1 Social Services provide support to the most vulnerable people in our community, 
often in very difficult situations, and routinely deliver effective services that make a 
real difference in people’s lives. Sometimes, however for a variety of reasons, people 
will make a complaint about the service they have received. It is important that 
anyone who makes a complaint about our services has a right to be listened to 
properly with their concerns resolved quickly and effectively.  In addition, it is 
important that Local Authorities learn from these complaints and where necessary 
use them to identify where services should be changed and improved.

7.2 Every effort is made to resolve matters at a local level with the emphasis on 
achieving successful resolution of complaints.  At stage one the Local Authority 
usually offers to discuss (either face-to-face or by telephone) the matter with the 
complainant within ten working days to attempt to resolve matters. This approach 
allows for quick and successful resolution of most complaints.

7.3 Whilst we do our very best and work hard to resolve complaints within the statutory 
timescales it is however acknowledge that some complaints can be complex, 
sensitive and difficult to resolve and that this is not possible on all occasions. It is 
important to note that an over emphasis on quick resolution within performance 
indicator timescales could detract from ensuring that full and proper consideration is 
given to complaints and that at times to achieve a successful resolution to the 
complaint it is necessary to take longer to investigate than the set timescales.

7.4 Timescales will be continued to be monitored to improve and promote adherence to 
statutory legislation and increase the timeliness of responses at stage one.

7.5 Social Services continues to adopt a positive attitude towards complaints, we 
continue to learn from complaints and view complaints as a valuable form of 
feedback, which assists in the development and improvement of services.  While not 
all complaints are upheld they do, however, provide useful information in respect of 
the way services are delivered.  They provided us with the opinions of our customers 
and also provide opportunities to learn lessons where a service has fallen short of 
expected standards.

7.6 Like all other Councils in Wales Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council are facing 
the need to reduce the amount of money we spend. However, despite the increasing 
challenges faced by public services, in general, the number of complaints received is 
relatively small in comparison to the nature of the services provided.

7.7 Social Services will continue to provide for the needs of the community, achieving 
the Council’s vision and strategic aims for the future. The needs of the population are 
changing and we will continue to learn and develop from complaints.  Services have 
continued to experience high levels of demand, reflecting the levels of disadvantage 

Page 10



and the challenges faced by a significant number of families living in the County 
Borough. The Social Care Complaints Procedure provides citizens with an essential, 
effective way of communicating their concerns so that levels of customer satisfaction 
can be increased and our services continue to improve. 

7.8 The Implementation of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act in April 2016 
will mean that the expectations of the people we serve will increase, this will also be 
in the context of continued austerity. We are therefore likely to see an increase in 
complaints in the interim until services develop to meet the new level of expectation 
and austerity measures are absorbed. 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO CORPORATE PRIORITIES

8.1 The content of this report has strategic congruence with the Strategic Aims and 
Objectives of the Improving Wellbeing Strategy in the following ways:

 Aim 2: Improve Performance within Social Services.

LISA CURTIS-JONES
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES)

COUNCILLOR LINDA MATTHEWS 
CABINET MEMBER (SOCIAL SERVICES)

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Annual Report Social 
Services Complaints, 
Representations and 
Compliments 2014/2015

Social Services 
Complaints Policy

December 2015

10th September 2014

Civic Centre

Civic Centre

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

No

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Community Services Directorate
 Community Services Directorate

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council

Annual Report 
Social Services

Complaints, Representations and Compliments
2014 / 2015

This Report can be made available in other languages and formats upon request.

APPENDIX I

Page 13



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
Annual Social Services Complaints Report 2014 / 2015

1

INTRODUCTION and BACKGROUND

Social Services provide support to the most vulnerable people in our community, often in 
very difficult situations, and routinely deliver effective services that make a real 
difference in people’s lives. Sometimes, however for a variety of reasons, people will 
make a complaint about the service they have received. It is important that anyone who 
makes a complaint about our services has a right to be listened to properly with their 
concerns resolved quickly and effectively.  In addition, it is important that Local 
Authorities learn from these complaints and where necessary use them to identify where 
services should be changed and improved.

New guidelines for handling complaints and representations by Local Authority Social 
Services came into force in August 2014.  This Welsh Government Guidance  entitled ‘A 
guide to handling complaints and representations by local authority social services’ 
supports the Welsh statutory instruments  ‘Social Services Complaints Procedure (Wales) 
Regulations 2014’ (2014 No. 1794 (W.187) and the ‘Representations Procedure (Wales) 
Regulations 2014’ (2014 No. 1795 (W. 188). This guidance replaces ‘Listening and 
Learning’ which was introduced in 2006.  

The major difference between the previous procedures and the new guidance is the 
removal of the Stage Three Independent Panel Hearing. The regulations introduced a 
new two stage process and bring the process for Social Services in line with the Corporate 
‘Model Concerns and Complaints Policy and Guidance’.  The aim is to provide streamline 
complaint arrangements across the public sector. Like the previous procedures (pre 
August 2014), the changed guidance focuses on an initial local resolution where we 
would expect a significant majority of complaints to be resolved. The second formal stage 
prescribes for clear independent involvement. If issues have not been resolved by the 
Local Authority within the two stage process, complainants have recourse to the Public 
Services Ombudsman for Wales.

Local Authorities are required by regulation to produce an Annual Report about the 
operation of their Social Services Complaint procedures.  This report provides a summary 
of statistical information relating to complaints and representations dealt with during the 
period April 2014 to March 2015. 

Receipt of all the complaints received were acknowledged within the statutory timescale 
(two working days). In some cases the issues raised fell outside the responsibility of the 
Directorate and in these instances, the Complaints Officer liaises with the appropriate 
Directorate or Agency. 

Page 14



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
Annual Social Services Complaints Report 2014 / 2015

2

Table 1: Overall complaints resolved

Service Area Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Adult Services 29 7 0 36
Children’s 
Services 

47 4 1 52

Total 76 11 1 88

Of the complaints received 59% related to Children’s Services, (of which 90% were at the 
informal stage one) and 41% related to Adult Services, (of which 80% were at the 
informal stage one).

Every effort is made to resolve matters at a local level with the emphasis on achieving 
successful resolution of complaints.  At stage one the Local Authority usually offers to 
discuss (either face-to-face or by telephone) the matter with the complainant within ten 
working days to attempt to resolve matters. This approach allows for quick and 
successful resolution of most complaints. Where this approach leads to resolution of the 
complaint, the Local Authority confirms the agreed outcomes in writing within 15 
working days. 

Table 2:  Complaints over the last three years

Service Area 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13
Adult Services 36 35 29
Children’s Services 52 60 33
Total 88 95 62

Table 3: Timescales for complaints resolved at stage one over last three years

Timescale (at the time of reporting) 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13
Within 10 working days 51% 52% 38%
Within 15 working days 8% - -

Over 15 working days 31.5% - -
Within 20 working days 6.5% 17% 42%
Over 20 working days 3% 27% 20%
Ongoing / On hold - 4% -

The stage one ‘start date’ is governed by (a) the date of acknowledgement, (b) the date on 
which an advocate is appointed or (c) where a complaint  is made by ‘other persons’, the 
date on which the Local Authority decides that the person has sufficient interest to 
warrant consideration. 

The new Welsh Government Guidance (from 1st August 2014) introduced a new 

Page 15



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
Annual Social Services Complaints Report 2014 / 2015

3

performance indicator of complaints resolved within 15 working days and complaints 
resolved over 15 working days. As this is the first year that this indicator has been 
complied we are unable to compare this with performance in previous reporting years.  
 
Overall, we completed 59% (the combined timescale for completion within 10 and 15 
days 2014/15) of stage one complaints within the Welsh Government statutory 
guidelines. Whilst we do our very best and work hard to resolve complaints within 10 
working days it is however acknowledge that some complaints can be complex, sensitive 
and difficult to resolve.  An over emphasis on quick resolution could detract from 
ensuring that full and proper consideration is given to complaints and that an acceptable 
outcome is achieved. Nevertheless, there is improvement in this area with the number of 
complaints resolved within this timescale increasing from 52% in 2013/14 and 38% in 
2012/13.

ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES COMPLAINT – STAGE ONE

Over the last three years the average amount of stage one complaints received regarding Adult 
Services is 26.

81% of all Adult Service complaints received were resolved at this stage during 2014/15.  In 
comparison with the previous two years, there is a decrease with regards to the reporting 
period 2013/14 (86%) and an increase on the 2012/13 period (72%). However, in terms of the 
total number of stage one complaint’s received the amount remains static with last year’s figure.

The diagram below shows the number of Adult Services stage one complaints received over the 
last three years:

Page 16



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
Annual Social Services Complaints Report 2014 / 2015

4Page 17



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
Annual Social Services Complaints Report 2014 / 2015

5

CHILDREN’S SOCIAL SERVICES COMPLAINT – STAGE ONE

Over the last three years the average amount of stage one complaints received regarding 
Children’s Services is 39.  

90% of all Children’s Services complaints received were resolved at this stage during 2014/15.

The number of Stage 1 complaints received in 2014/2015 is slightly lower than was the case in 
2013/14 but they remain significantly higher than the number received in 2012/2013.

Four of these stage one complaints came from children/young people (two of which involved 
advocacy support).  At the time of reporting, the four complaints were resolved at stage one. 
However, it should be noted that it is at the discretion of the complainant whether or not they 
progress their complaint to stage two.   At the conclusion of the stage one complaint, details are 
provided regarding how to further their complaint should they remain dissatisfied.  

 The diagram below shows the number of Children’s Services stage one complaints received 
over the last three years:

Page 18



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
Annual Social Services Complaints Report 2014 / 2015

6

ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES COMPLAINT – STAGE TWO

The formal complaints received are more complex in nature and often contain several 
components of dissatisfaction to be independently investigated.  During this reporting period, 
we received seven complaints which were dealt with at stage two, this equates to 19% of the 
total Adult Services complaints raised.  Of these, five progressed through the procedure from 
stage one. Due to the complex nature of their content, two commenced with independent 
investigation at the formal stage (bypassing stage one).  The decision was made with the 
consent of the person making the complaint.

Two complaints were made by the same family at separate times of the year. In instances such 
as this, it is standard practice for different Independent Investigators to be commissioned for 
each separate complaint.

The diagram below shows the number of Adult Services stage two complaints received over the 
last three years:

Page 19



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
Annual Social Services Complaints Report 2014 / 2015

7

CHILDREN’S SOCIAL SERVICES COMPLAINT – STAGE TWO

During this reporting period we received four complaints which were dealt with at stage two, 
which equates to 8% of the total Children’s Services complaints. The complaints were 
independently investigated. None of the complaints dealt with at Stage 2 were made by 
children/young person.  Of these, three progressed through Stage 2 with the complainant 
remaining dissatisfied at the end of the Local Resolution stage. Due to the complexity of the 
content, and with the approval of the complainant, the remaining complaint was independently 
investigated directly at stage two (bypassing stage one). 

Where a representation falls to be considered under the ‘Children Act 1989’ and is subject to the 
Formal Investigation stage, an Independent Person must also be appointed (alongside the 
Independent Investigator).  This Independent Person provides a separate oversight and he or 
she must actively take part in the formal consideration and also any discussion about the action 
the Local Authority should take. 

The diagram below shows the number of Children’s Services stage two complaints received 
over the last three years:

Page 20



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
Annual Social Services Complaints Report 2014 / 2015

8

COMPLAINT OUTCOMES

Table 4: Adult Services Complaints Outcomes 2014/15

Not Upheld Part Upheld Upheld Inconclusive Total
Stage 1 16 11 1 1 29
Stage 2 4 3 7
Stage 3
Total 20 14 1 1 36

Table 5: Children’s Services Complaints Outcomes 2014/15

Not Upheld Part Upheld Upheld Inconclusive Total
Stage 1 23 18 5 1 47
Stage 2 1 3 4
Stage 3 1 1
Total 24 22 5 1 52

Our emphasis is focused on achieving satisfactory resolution of matters rather than upholding 
or not upholding complaints.  It is noted however that at stage one, 55% of Adult Services and 
49% of Children’s Services were deemed to be ‘not upheld’ following investigation.

All complaints are unique in their own right and often contain several elements of 
dissatisfaction to be addressed. This is particularly relevant at the formal stage, hence the reason 
why the majority of stage two complaints are part upheld – some components being endorsed, 
while others not vindicated. 

Communication issues including failure to respond within appropriate timescales to messages 
and failure to update customers on decision continued to be a theme through this reporting 
period.

With regards to Children’s Services a number of complaints were received whereby, in the 
complainant’s opinions there had been an intrusion into their lives and the families concerned 
believed that their children did not require our intervention.

INDEPENDENT PANEL HEARING

During the reporting period 1st April 2014 to 31st July 2014 one complaint progressed to Stage 
Three of the Social Care Complaints Procedure. This complaint related to a Children’s Services 
matter and in addressing one of the complaints components, the Independent Panel 
recommended that the Independent Investigator be reengaged by the Local Authority to 
undertake a specific piece of work, and following this work decide if the finding could be 
changed. This recommendation was accepted by the Local Authority. Every attempt was made 
to resolve the complaint at this stage, with the majority of the queries raised examined and 
explained in detail. 

Page 21



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
Annual Social Services Complaints Report 2014 / 2015

9

PUBLIC SERVICE OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES

If complainant’s remains dissatisfied they have recourse to the Public Service Ombudsman for 
Wales (PSOW). During this reporting period, two Adult Services complaints and one Children’s 
Services complaint were considered by the PSOW.  At the time of reporting the two Adult 
Services complaints continue to be under PSOW consideration. The Children’s Services 
complaint is closed to the PSOW with the outcome being that the complainant furnishes the 
Council with any additional evidence for the matter to be re-examined at the formal stage. 
However, the complainant in this case, is requesting a review of the PSOW Investigating 
Officers decision and this is currently being looked at by the PSOW Reviewing Officer.  

COMPLAINTS RELATING TO EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS

Approximately 60% of the services we provide are through contracts with independent sector 
providers.

In addition to the complaints previously reported, the Local Authority received six Adult 
Services complaints relating to external commissioned agencies.  These complaints related to 
the actions of contracted / commissioned agencies working on behalf of the Local Authority 
and not directly against the service provision from the Council. All of these services have 
contracts in place which are monitored on a regular basis.

HABITUAL / VEXATIOUS COMPLAINANTS 

During the year, three individuals were subject to restrictions under this policy, as a result of 
their behaviour causing difficulties in the effective management of their complaints. Two 
people have continued to be included under this policy since May 2011 and a further person 
was initially included under this policy in May 2014. Individual’s inclusion under the 
Habitual/Vexatious Complaints Policy is reviewed every six months. 

LEARNING FROM COMPLAINTS 

Social Services adopts a positive attitude towards complaints, we continue to learn from 
complaints and view complaints as a valuable form of feedback, which assists in the 
development and improvement of services.  

All customer feedback is encouraged to inform service improvement, raise the profile and 

reputation of the Department and the Council, and develop more responsive ways of working 

that puts the customer at the heart of everything we do. How we handle and respond to the 

feedback (complaints, compliments and comments) is a key indicator of success and we are 

committed to:

 using customer feedback to improve the quality of our services

 improving our relationships with our customers

Page 22



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
Annual Social Services Complaints Report 2014 / 2015

10

 identifying our failures and resolving them reasonably and quickly

 monitoring and identifying complaints trends to inform and improve service delivery

Some examples of actions arising from outcomes of investigations of complaints are 
summarised:- 

Following a formal investigation, the Independent Investigator identified an area for 
improvement - namely the misdirected communications sent by the Local Authority. As a result 
of this complaint the relevant Department reviewed its systems and procedures in this area. A 
review of practices and procedures in this area resulted in introducing an automatic reminder 
in systems which ensures that if someone passes away or changes their address, staff are 
automatically instructed to inform all the relevant Teams/Departments within the Local 
Authority about the change, to enable them to update all their records and systems 
appropriately. 

An independent recommendation highlighted that documentation was not being provided to 
families 24 hours before a child protection conference. It was concluded that there was clearly a 
failing in this area of practice.  In order to address this matter, the Director of Social Services 
directed that this area be discussed further in the Practice and Development Forum which is 
attended by the relevant managers. 

A formal complaint’s recommendations coincided with the work already being implemented to 
review and revise protocols to ensure that family members are made aware of relevant 
incidents occurring in Council Homes within 24 hours. 

A common theme reported is a lack of information and communication from Social Services 
including failure to respond within appropriate timescales to messages and failure to update 
customers on decisions, delays in assessments, failure to implement agreed actions and not 
following through what was promised.  Examples also include staff failure to update customers 
with regard to changes to meetings, appointments etc.

 COMPLIMENTS

It is always important to also hear when people are happy with what we have done. A total of 
16 compliments and positive comments were formally recorded during the year.

Compliments provide valuable information regarding the quality of services identifies where 
they are working well and identifies a balanced reflection of members of the public’s perception 
of our services.

Examples of compliments received during the year:-

Comment:
‘Would you please accept my sincere thanks and appreciation. In a very short time I was informed that 
my State and small Private pensions exceeded the threshold whereby grant aid would be available . . . . 
May I also congratulate you on the quality of your visiting team. Not only were they friendly, 
professional and helpful but had that rare unteachable ability of making one feel that you were the only 

Page 23



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
Annual Social Services Complaints Report 2014 / 2015

11

client that mattered, well done.’ 
‘To all the girls who looked after mum with such care and kindness, a massive thank you.  Mum really 
looked forward to her visits from you all and the time you took to chat to her.  We felt really reassured 
by the care you gave her’.
‘Since my father has been supported by XX can I state that XX has been brilliant and is a true asset to 
your department.  His expert knowledge and practical style, which I consider to be his greatest 
strength, have helped my father and family through a very difficult time . . . XX is always at the end of 
the phone and when he commits to finding something out or calling you back, his commitment is 
always kept’.
‘Thank you so much for everything you have done for me and my children, I have changed my life 
around’.
‘To all the carers, thank you all so much for the wonderful support you gave to XX for the past 6 years, 
it enabled him to retain his dignity and pride, which as you know, was so important to him. We will 
never forget your kindness and care’.

i)‘Thank you very much for arranging the trip to XX for XX.  She really did enjoy seeing her family . . . 
The family, like us, said XX is a credit to you. All wish to say thank you. . .’  ii) ‘Thanks a lot.  I got to 
see my family and they all love you both. . Thank you for taking me to XX and for such a lovely time’.
‘I am writing to thank you for the help with a computer for XX, to help with her school work as XX as 
been trying her best to catch up with her work. This will make her more confident about her 
schoolwork . . . Once again I would like to thank you and your work colleagues for all the work and 
support you have done for XX.  They are all very happy and content’.

CONCLUSION

The Social Care Complaints Procedure provides service users and their advocates with an 
effective way of communicating their concerns so that levels of customer satisfaction can be 
increased and our services continue to improve.

Like all other Councils in Wales we are facing the need to reduce the amount of money we 
spend. However, despite the increasing challenges faced by public services, in general, the 
number of complaints received is relatively small in comparison to the nature of the services 
provided. Overall, 86% of all complaints were resolved at stage one.  However, it should be 
noted, that we need to improve on the number of stage one complaint’s we resolve within ten 
working days (51%).  Since the last report, we have seen a number of changes in social services. 
Despite this our performance has remained generally good. 

Social Services continue to provide for the needs of the community, achieving the Council’s 
vision and strategic aims for the future. The needs of the population are changing and we will 
continue to learn and develop from complaints.  On average, users of our service recognise the 
support and good practice afforded to them and the number of complaints recorded continues 
to be a very low percentage of the total number of people and children of Merthyr Tydfil who 
are provided with services.  The pressure on social services continues to increase with the 
numbers of older people rising and becoming a larger proportion of the overall population. This 
will inevitably result in an increase in demand for social services. Likewise, the demand for 
services continues to increase for Children’s Services.  Services have continued to experience 
high levels of demand, reflecting the levels of disadvantage and the challenges faced by a 

Page 24



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
Annual Social Services Complaints Report 2014 / 2015

12

significant number of families living in the County Borough. The Social Care Complaints 
Procedure provides citizens with an essential, effective way of communicating their concerns so 
that levels of customer satisfaction can be increased and our services continue to improve. With 
the Implementation of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act in April 2016 the 
expectations of the people we serve will increase, this will also be in the context of continued 
austerity. We are therefore likely to see an increase in complaints in the interim until services 
develop to meet the new level of expectation and austerity measures are absorbed. 

________________________

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
       Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

PREPARATION OF SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME -
2016/17

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 The Scrutiny Committee has come to the end of its work programme for 2015/16 
and needs to prepare same for 2016/17.

1.2 This report sets out some of the criteria that need to be considered when 
considering a work programme.

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that

2.1 That Scrutiny Committee notes the content of the report and commences 
preparation of the 2016/17 work programme.

3.0 BACKGROUND / INFORMATION

3.1 Setting a work programme for the scrutiny committee is an important stage in the 
Scrutiny process. An effective and well planned work programme will identify the 
key topics that scrutiny will consider over the coming year. The Local Government 
(Wales) Measure 2011 requires Scrutiny Committees to publish forward plans of their 
scrutiny work.

3.2 Scrutiny is a Member-led function and as such it is up to the scrutiny committee 
itself to determine the work programme. It is vital that scrutiny members take 
responsibility for both drawing up and managing their own work programme. The 
work programme is a working document that is subject to change and Members 
can add, remove, and defer items as necessary. A Work Programme will provide a 
clear picture to the public and partners of planned scrutiny activity

Date Written 9th May 2016
Report Author Scrutiny Section
Service Area Scrutiny
Committee Date 17th May 2016

Page 27

Agenda Item 5



3.3 “Effective work programming is the bedrock of an effective scrutiny function. Done 
well, it can help to lay the foundations for targeted, incisive and timely work on 
issues of local importance, where scrutiny can add value. Done badly, scrutiny can 
end up wasting time and resources on issues where the impact of any work done is 
likely to be minimal.”1 

3.4 The Wales Audit Office2 says that “Councils should ensure that the contents of 
forward work programmes are based on sound criteria with a clear rationale for 
topic selection and that sufficient consideration is given to the method of scrutiny, 
rather than just the selection of topics. A key criterion for the selection of topics 
and the method of scrutiny should be the extent to which scrutiny committees are 
likely to have an impact in the area they have selected.”

“To help ensure that scrutiny has an impact, scrutiny committees may have to 
balance a desire to examine a large number of topics with the likelihood of 
securing greater impact through focusing on a small number of items in more 
detail.”

3.5 Some key principles for setting work programmes are: 
 Topics should add value and support corporate priorities 
 Where appropriate involve partners, stakeholders and the public 
 Allow some flexibility to enable topics to be included as they arise 
 Seek improvement in Service provision 
 Be achievable within available resources 

3.6 Sources of information to identify key topics for the work programme come from a 
wide range of sources including: 

 Suggestions made by Council Members and Co-opted members 
 Suggestions made by senior management 
 Suggestions made by members of the public
 Corporate performance reports 
 Suggestions made by partners and stakeholders 
 Suggestions made by Regulators
 The Council's Corporate Plan / Corporate Priorities
 The LSB’s Single Improvement Plan
 Topics from budget monitoring reports 
 Issues from audit and inspection reports 
 Performance issues
 Inspectors’ and regulators’ concerns
 Concerns and complaints raised by the Public about a particular service, for example.

The Committee will also have considered:-
 Its areas of responsibilities / remit 

1 Centre for public Scrutiny (CfPS)
2 “Good Scrutiny? Good Question!” 20th May 2014 http://www.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=113&offset=0

Page 28

http://www.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=113&offset=0


 the roles that scrutiny undertakes e.g. holding the Cabinet and decision-makers 
to account; policy review and development; performance monitoring;  external 
scrutiny.

3.7 There is a mechanism in place on the scrutiny pages of the Councils 
website to allow anyone to submit suggestions for the work programmes 
(online form). 

3.8 Appendix I is a suggested aid when considering items for the work programme. 
Appendix II is the completed work programme document for 2016/17.

3.9 Committees members will be aware that the Council has seven key priorities as 
per the Corporate Plan. These are:- 1) Raising Standards of Attainment; 2) 
Employability;  3) Economic Development;  4) Promoting Active Lifestyles;  5) 
Promoting Independence; 6) Meeting the Needs of Vulnerable Children and 7)  A 
Sustainable Environment.

The seven Council priority areas are delivered through 4 themes, and each of the 
4 Chief Officers has ownership and responsibility for one of these themes. The 4 
themes are:-

 Raising Standards - (Chief Officer for Learning/ Cabinet member for 
Learning) 
Learning & LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee

 Improving Wellbeing - (Chief Officer for Social Services / Cabinet member 
for Social Services)
Social Services Scrutiny Committee

 Economic Growth - (Chief Officer for Community Regeneration / Cabinet 
member for Regeneration, Planning and Countryside)
Regeneration, Planning & Countryside Scrutiny Committee

 Sustainable Development - (Chief Officer for Neighbourhood Services / 
Cabinet member for Neighbourhood Services and Public Protection)
Neighbourhood Services and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee

3.10 To reflect the 4 themes as per above in a convenient form, 4 “strategies on a page” 
have been developed and each reflects Measures of Success; Desired Outcomes 
and Strategic Aims and Objectives.

3.11 Much of Scrutiny committee work programme activity is aligned to the delivery of 
the Council’s corporate priorities and the “strategies of a page” can assist scrutiny 
committees in this role. The “strategies of a page” can be found at the end of this 
report.

HOWARD JONES
SCRUTINY OFFICER

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Post Inspection Action Plan

Page 29



APPENDIX I

Scrutiny Work Programme Proposal / Request Form

Item(s) for ………………………………….………..Scrutiny Committee Work Programme

Topic/Subject ……………………………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………….

Q) Why has the item been suggested for the scrutiny work programme?
 Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan and 

priorities / Local Service Board’s Single Integrated Plan?

 Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns?

 Is this item/topic of significant public interest?

 Has the item/topic got budgetary implications?

 Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant difference and 
achieve tangible outcomes?

 Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available resources?

 Other – please specify……………………………………………………………

Please provide further details…………………………………………………………………….

………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

Q) What is the specific role of the committee?
           This will depend on the item – for example the role could be:

 To determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department

 To determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose

 To satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a major 
issue 

 To gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny   
investigation / review

 To explore possible solutions to an issue

 Other – please specify………………………………………………………………………..

Please provide further details…………………………………………………………………….
Page 30



………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

Q) What outcome is being sought from the consideration of this item?
 To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet regarding the 

proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council 

 Identification of any causes for concern and note successes.

 To receive an overview presentation.

 To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy

 To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the pressures facing 
each service. This also helps provide an overview of the policy frame work. 

 For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of the 
corporate plan / other plan / other strategy.

 Improvement in service delivery

 other – please specify……………………………………………………………

Please provide further details…………………………………………………………………….

………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information?
Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range of 
witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and External 
partners – e.g. Police, Health Board etc

Please provide further details…………………………………………………………………….

………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

Page 31



Q) Does the committee need to ask for written representations?
The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This will 
assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer ready 
for the meeting. 

Please provide further details…………………………………………………………………….

………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item and for 
the witnesses that will be invited to attend?
Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. You 
may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. community 
centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some people find the 
formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more appropriate to see 
first hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining information on e.g. waste 
sites, regeneration projects etc.

Please provide further details…………………………………………………………………….

………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

………………………………………………………………………………………………………..

Page 32



Social Services
Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2015/16

Meeting Date Subject Invitees Theme Scrutiny Focus
Looked After 
Children Strategy 
Implementation

AL & Children 
Services

Monitoring, Scrutiny & Challenge : A quarterly update on progress 
implementing the LAC strategy and the associated risks, issues and 
challenges. The strategy is seeking a reduction in the number of LAC and 
CPR over the next few years

16th June 2015
Social Services & 
Wellbeing Act

LCJ, AL, 
MA, BC

Strategic 
Issues

Awareness Raising : A presentation detailing the key elements of the 
Social Services & Wellbeing Act to include an outline of the regional 
implementation plan with its 17 themes and MTCBC’s lead on 3 of these

8th July 2015 (Joint) Budget Outturn 
2014/15

LCJ, EC, 
GC, LB

Joint 
Scrutiny

Scrutiny & Challenge : A report detailing the outturn for the 2014/15 
budget and the implications for the 4 year medium term financial plan

Annual Report LCJ, AL, 
MA, BC

Social 
Services

Information & Scrutiny : The Director of Social Services annual statutory 
report to Welsh Government

De-registration of 
Park View and 
Glynderw

MA Adult 
Services

Monitoring & Scrutiny : 6 monthly updates on progress and impact from 
de-registering Park View and Glynderw and associated risks, issues, 
challenges and outcomes.28th July 2015

MTCBC 
Safeguarding 
Review 
(Rotherham)

Nicola 
Kingham

Social 
Services

Information & Scrutiny : Self-Assessment with Scrutiny

Looked After 
Children Strategy 
Implementation

AL & Port. 
Member

Children 
Services

Monitoring, Scrutiny & Challenge : A quarterly update on progress 
implementing the LAC strategy and the associated risks, issues and 
challenges. The strategy is seeking a reduction in the number of LAC and 
CPR over the next few years

8th September 2015
Budget & 
Transformation 
Projects 2014/15

LCJ, MA, 
AL

Budgets Scrutiny & Challenge : An update on progress towards meeting budget 
transformation requirements set for 2014/15

P
age 33



Outcome 
Agreement report

EMcW Scrutiny & Challenge : Summary of Performance3 against the Outcome 
Agreement with the Welsh Government (Information Report) (Annual 
Performance Report moved to 20th October (EMcW) and Outcome report to be submitted instead 
(Advised 24/8)

Older People 
Strategy

MA Adult 
Services

Monitoring, Scrutiny & Challenge: An update on progress implementing 
the Older People strategy and the associated risks, issues and challenges. 
The strategy is seeking to improve joint commissioning and use of the 
Intermediate Care Fund.

Communities First Ian 
Benbow / 
R. Stokes

Prevention 
& Early 
Intervention

Scrutiny & Challenge: A report(s) on progress towards achieving 
improvements in outcomes in the 3 programmes across MTCBC. Each 
cluster to update.20th October 2015 

Safeguarding Annabelle 
Lloyd

Social 
Services

Scrutiny & Challenge: Safeguarding Children Board report. “…both Council 
officers and elected members acknowledged that the quality of 
safeguarding performance challenge at Scrutiny needs to be improved “ 
(Source – WAO- Annual Improvement report and Corporate Assessment 
June 2015)

Looked After 
Children Strategy 
Implementation

AL & Port. 
Member

Children 
Services

Monitoring, Scrutiny & Challenge : A quarterly update on progress 
implementing the LAC strategy and the associated risks, issues and 
challenges. The strategy is seeking a reduction in the number of LAC and 
CPR over the next few years

De-registration of 
Park View and 
Glynderw

MA Adult 
Services

Monitoring & Scrutiny : 6 monthly updates on progress and impact from 
de-registering Park View and Glynderw and associated risks, issues, 
challenges and outcomes.

Budget & 
Transformation 
Projects 2014/15

LCJ, MA, 
AL

Budgets Scrutiny & Challenge : At the September meeting  there was an update on 
progress towards meeting budget transformation requirements set for 
2014/15. A further report is required, with more detail on those projects 
that are amber or red.

1st December 2015

Annual 
Performance 
Evaluation for 
2014-2015

CSSIW Social 
Services

Monitoring & Scrutiny: The CSSIW will be publishing the evaluation report 
on 30 October 2015 and wish to present it to this scrutiny committee 
before 31 December 2015 (email LCJ 10th July )

P
age 34



Regional Adoption 
Collaborative

Annabelle 
Lloyd

Children 
Services

Monitoring & Scrutiny: An update  and some early performance 
information  in relation to our regional adoption collaborative

Cwmtaf 
Safeguarding Adult 
Board Annual 
Report

Nicola 
Kingham

Cllr LM Scrutiny & Challenge :  This is the Annual report 2014/15, which will have 
been to Cabinet in December 2015. 

Cwmtaf 
Safeguarding 
Childrens Board 
Annual Report

Nicola 
Kingham 

Cllr LM Scrutiny & Challenge :  This is the Annual report 2014/15, which will have 
been to Cabinet in December 2015.12th January 2016 

Cwm Taf Youth 
Offending Service

Jason O’Brien, Head of 
Cwm Taf Youth Offending 
Services at RCTCBC/ 
Annabel Lloyd

Scrutiny & Challenge :   An update on the continued development of Cwm 
Taf Youth Offending Service with a focus on the performance of the service 
and potential risks to future service delivery based financial challenges.

14th January 2016 (Joint) 
now 27th January

Budget Proposals 
2015/16

LCJ, EC, 
GC, LB

Joint 
Scrutiny

Scrutiny & Challenge : A report detailing the budget proposals for 2015/16 
and the implications for the 4 year medium term financial plan

Disabled Facility 
Grants (DFG’s)

Audit / 
COT’s 
Team

Performance Scrutiny & Challenge: At a Regeneration Scrutiny Committee meeting in 
November there was a presentation on DFG’s. There were two follow up 
points 1) DFG’s dealt with by 2 dept. i.e. COT Team making the assessment 
of need before involving the Housing Grants Team. To look at reasons for 
any delays in progressing DFG’s between the 2 dept.’s 2) Clarification when 
DFG’s were Audited.23rd February 2016

CSSIW Report 
Action Plan Update

AL / LCJ / 
MA

Performance Scrutiny & Challenge. At the 1st December meeting CSSIW reported to 
committee on their report. An action plan was needed to address the 
recommendations in the report. This will be the first update, then every six 
months thereafter.

5th April 2016 Looked After 
Children Strategy 
Implementation

AL & Port. 
Member

Children 
Services

Monitoring, Scrutiny & Challenge: A quarterly update on progress 
implementing the LAC strategy and the associated risks, issues and 
challenges. The strategy is seeking a reduction in the number of LAC and 
CPR over the next few years

P
age 35



Fostering 
Inspection Report

AL & Port. 
Member

Children 
Services

Scrutiny & Challenge. To provide the committee with a copy of the latest 
Fostering Inspection report

CSSIW Report 
Action Plan Update

AL / LCJ / 
MA

Performance Scrutiny & Challenge. At the 1st December meeting CSSIW reported to 
committee on their report. An action plan was needed to address the 
recommendations in the report. This will be the first update, then every six 
months thereafter.

17th May 2016 Annual Report – 
Complaints, 

Representations 
and Compliments 
Report 2014/15

LCJ / JS Complaints Scrutiny and Challenge: to receive the key points contained in the annual 
Social Services Complaints, Representations and Compliments report.

To be confirmed

CSSIW Report 
Action Plan Update

AL / LCJ / 
MA

Performance Scrutiny & Challenge. At the 1st December meeting CSSIW reported to 
committee on their report. An action plan was needed to address the 
recommendations in the report. This will be the first update, then every six 
months thereafter. (Report that went to 23rd February 2016 meeting didn’t 
cover all the actions).

To be confirmed

Reviews For 
Looked After 
Children & 
Children On The 
Child Protection 
Register

AL Children 
Services

Monitoring & Scrutiny : An annual report providing details of numbers of 
LAC and CPR and the impact of the review processes

To be confirmed 
Merthyr Tydfil 
Family Centre

AL Family 
Service

Scrutiny & Challenge: A report on Children in Need and the Merthyr Tydfil 
Family Centre (was Thomas Town House).

To be confirmed (several 
meetings)

Social Services & 
Wellbeing Act – 
Key Themes

LCJ, AL, 
MA

Information & Scrutiny : An outline of the significant key themes with the 
associated risks, issues, challenges and desired outcomes

To be confirmed Multiple SH Prevention Scrutiny & Challenge : An annual report which details

P
age 36



Intervention 
Assistance (MIA)

& Early 
Intervention

To be confirmed

Adult Day Services 
Reconfiguration

MA Prevention 
& Early 
Intervention

Pre- Scrutiny : Adult Day Services are transferring from Social 
Regeneration to Social Services and will be reconfigured over the next 6 
months. This report will detail the proposed approach to better support 
the prevention and early intervention agenda

To be confirmed

The Impact Of 
Prevention & Early 
Intervention 
Programmes On 
Social Services

LCJ, SH Prevention 
& Early 
Intervention

Scrutiny & Challenge : A report which details how PEI programmes are 
helping to reduce the pressure on social services in terms of referrals, re-
referrals and acute/chronic individual and family issues 

To be confirmed

Corporate 
Strategic Direction 
Plan

GC/BT/P
W

Joint 
Scrutiny

Scrutiny & Challenge: A report on developing and delivering the corporate 
strategic direction plan identifying progress towards achieving targets and 
desired outcomes, risks and issues.  

To be confirmed

Disabled Facility 
Grants (DFG’s)

Audit / 
COT’s 
Team

Performance Scrutiny & Challenge: At a Regeneration Scrutiny Committee meeting in 
November there was a presentation on DFG’s. There were two follow up 
points 1) DFG’s dealt with by 2 dept. i.e. COT Team making the assessment 
of need before involving the Housing Grants Team. To look at reasons for 
any delays in progressing DFG’s between the 2 dept.’s 2) Clarification when 
DFG’s were Audited.

This item is here as committee agreed to review / have an update 
following the 23rd February 2016 meeting. This relates to the delay issue 
not the Auditing issue.

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Measures of Success

Raising Standards

Desired Outcomes

Strategic Aims 

All learners attain at least
the expected standard at all

stages in their education

Vision:

AIM 1: Improve the quality of
leadership including the leadership
of learning and teaching

AIM 2: Improve LA and
commissioned services

Leadership in all schools
is good or better

All members of the
education community

collaborate well in order
to improve the standards
and wellbeing of pupils

Teaching in all schools
is good or better

LA provision improves 
standards of attainment 

and the quality of
leadership and teaching 

in schools

P
age 39



Specific Measurable Outcomes - Measures of Success

Improving Wellbeing

Desired Outcomes

Strategic Aims & Objectives:

Social Services:
- Children
- Adults
- Safeguarding

We will help people in
Merthyr Tydfil to maximise their
potential, be free from poverty,

be independent and healthy
and to live in supportive and

resilient communities.
People in Merthyr Tydfil 

will be able to lead 
independent and 

fulfilled lives.
Vulnerable children in 

Merthyr Tydfil live 
healthy, safe and fulfilled 

lives.

People in Merthyr Tydfil 
are physically active and 

as a result have 
improved health.

Vision:

P
age 40



Economic	  Growth	  Plan	  
	  
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  Vision	  	  	  	  

Priority	  Area	  	   The	  Business	  Base	  	   Baseline	  
	  (year)	   Target	  	   	  	   Priority	  Area	  	   The	  Labour	  Market	  	   Baseline	  

(year)	   Target	  	   	  	   Priority	  Area	  	   Skills	  	   Baseline	  
(year)	   Target	  	  

Key	  Indicator	  	   Count	  of	  birth	  of	  new	  
enterprises	  	   225	  (2013)	   300	   	  	   Key	  Indicator	  	   Economic	  Ac@vity,	  

Unitary	  Authori@es	  in	  
Wales	  	  

27833	  (2011)	   30000	   	  	   Key	  Indicator	  	   Level	  2	  Skills	  	   6682	   7000	  

Indicator	  	   VAT	  /	  PAYE	  Registered	  
Enterprise	  Births	  	   225	  (2013)	   300	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Average	  Gross	  Weekly	  

Earnings	  	   £477.60	  
(2014)	   £500	   	  	   Indicator	   Working	  Age	  PopulaLon	  

with	  level	  2	  qualificaLons	  
(2011)	  	  	  

6682	   7000	  

Indicator	  	   VAT	  /	  PAYE	  Registered	  
Enterprise	  Deaths	  	   135	  (2013)	   100	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Claimant	  Count	  Levels	  	   1,100	  (Mar	  2015)	   900	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Working	  Age	  PopulaLon	  

with	  no	  qualificaLons	  
(2011)	  

9963	   9000	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Gross	  Disposal	  
Household	  Income	  Per	  
Head	  	  	  

£13,500	   £14000	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	   Unemployment	  Levels	  
16	  +	  	   2000	   1600	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   Indicator	  	   Economic	  InacLvity	  
Levels	  16-‐64	  year	  olds	   7,900	   7,300	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	   	  	  

 

AIM 1: Develop a diverse 
and vibrant business 

base 

	  	  

AIM 2: Create a flexible, 
resilient and responsive 

labour market 	  

 
 

AIM 3:  Increase the 
quality and skills within 
the existing and future 

workforce necessary for 
effective business growth  

	  	  

 
 

AIM 4: Improve and create 
the right infrastructure to 

enable and accelerate 
business growth   

	  	  

Measurable	  Outcomes	  	  

Desired	  Outcomes	  	  

P
age 41



A Sustainable Environment

Vision
People in Merthyr Tydfil 
will live in communities 
that are sustainable, clean 
and energy efficient. 

Waste Management
Energy Management
Environmental Quality  - Cleaning / Fly Tipping / Litter
           - Air Quality
           - Noise

Flood Management
Planning & Countryside
Wildlife & Biodiversity
Parks & Open SpacesSpecific Measurable Outcomes - ‘Scores on Doors’

  - Measure of Success

Strategic Aims & Objectives -

Desired Outcomes -

Creation of more
‘Greener’ jobs

P
age 42


	Agenda
	3 Social Services response to CSSIW report
	4 Annual report Social Services Complaints, Representations and Compliments
	Appendix I

	5 Preparation of Work Programme for 2016/17
	Social Services Descriptors
	strategies on a page


